

MEETING MINUTES EVANSTON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Wednesday, March 16, 2016 6:30 PM Evanston Public Library, 1703 Orrington Avenue, Board Room

Members Present: Tori Foreman, Shawn Iles, Margaret Lurie, Vaishali Patel, Benjamin Schapiro, Leora Siegel, Sandra Smith, Michael Tannen

Members Absent: Socorro Clarke

Staff: Karen Danczak Lyons, Paul Gottschalk, Kim Hegelund, Mary Kling, Jose Maldonado, Wynn Shawver, Jessica Ticus

Guests: Carole Skalinder, Virginia Zboralski

Presiding Member: Michael Tannen, President

CALL TO ORDER/DECLARATION OF QUORUM - A quorum was present and President Tannen called the meeting to order at 6:34pm.

CITIZEN COMMENT - none

INFORMATION/COMMUNICATIONS

- A. Update on Robert Crown Branch Library Project This will be a standing item on the agenda as the planning progresses. Karen Danczak Lyons reported that the project committee is meeting weekly. Currently they are discussing bylaws for a proposed Foundation that will be the entity that can accept and receipt gifts and direct the funding. CCS, the fundraising consulting firm, is creating materials to be used with prospective donors. EPL is contacting 30 people who expressed an interest in learning more about the project in the online survey. The City Council will meet on March 21st to continue the discussion of the project. EPL's 2017 budget will include costs for constructing and equipping this new branch library; the 2018 budget will include staff costs. The facility is anticipated to open in the fall of 2018.
- **B. Evanston Public Library Friends Update** Karen Danczak Lyons and Michael Tannen met with Lori Keenan, Trish Stieglitz, and Jim Hughes of the Evanston Public Library Friends, to thank them for their support of the 2015 Storytelling Festival and Summer Reading Program. The Friends will continue to be helpful volunteering and fundraising for projects such as National Library Week, 2016 Summer Reading Program and the Robert Crown Branch Library Project.

CONSENT AGENDA – Benjamin Schapiro motioned to approve the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the February 17, 2016 meeting, the bills list and payroll. Seconded by Leora Siegel and approved on a voice vote.

LIBRARY DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Director Danczak Lyons reviewed highlights of her monthly report (see report attached):

- On March 9th Luis Alberto Urrea, author of *Into The Beautiful North*, gave a keynote address to over 100 enthusiastic readers. It will be re-broadcast on the City's channel 16.
- In partnership with Jennifer Lasik, the Evanston Public Library is producing a series of programs for City staff as part of the ongoing Livability Academy.
- With tax season upon us, the Library is once again providing tax preparation help through the Center for Economic Progress. Last year 502 returns were completed, this year the goal is to file 600 returns.

STAFF REPORTS

- Administrative Services Report Paul Gottschalk reported that Laura Hirshfield, who has been on staff in various roles for 37 years, will be retiring April 1st. The Library is seeking bids for the main building weatherproofing, for the North Branch construction (including HVAC replacement, new lighting, ceiling replacement, and water/sewer service), and the replacement of two burners on the main building's boilers.
- **Concierge Experience** Jose Maldonado, Circulation Manager, and Kim Hegelund, Assistant Circulation Manager, gave a presentation on the new concierge program. Concierge volunteers are stationed at a desk in the main Library's lobby and provide visitors with a warm welcome and help with everything from way finding to Library information. This has been a big help to the Circulation Desk staff as well as to improving the visitor's experience. Mary Kling, Volunteer Coordinator, is seeking to fill some evening and weekend slots still available. Volunteers Carole Skalinder and Ginny Zboralski spoke about their positive experience as concierge volunteers.

BOARD REPORTS

A. Facilities Committee – Ben Schapiro asked for Board approval to move forward to seek a formal Invitation to Bid on the Main Library Interior Renovation Project from the four architectural firms recommended by staff. The firms are Engberg Anderson Architects, Interactive Design Architects, Lohan Studio of Wight & Co. and Studio GC Architecture. Margaret Lurie seconded and it was approved on voice vote.

BOARD DEVELOPMENT

A. The ALA/United for Libraries board development video "Library Policies" was not able to be shown due to technical difficulties.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A. Approval of Proposed Amendment to the Bylaws – Board members continued discussion of the proposed amendment to the bylaws that would remove the two-term limit of service by Board members. Ben Schapiro moved to amend the by-laws as outlined in the March 10, 2016 memo:

"1.3.2 Qualification, Appointment, and Tenure

Consistent with the Illinois Local Library Act and the Evanston City Code, the Mayor of the City of Evanston, with the approval of the City Council, annually appoints, before the first of July each year, Library Trustees chosen from city residents with reference to their fitness for such office. Trustees appointed by the Mayor shall hold office for three years and will serve through June 30 and thereafter until a successor has been appointed. Trustees are eligible to be reappointed by the Mayor to additional three-year terms. Subject to reappointment by the Mayor and approval by the City Council, there are no limits to the number of terms a Trustee may serve. In the event of a Trustee leaving the Board prior to the end of his/her term, a Trustee will be appointed to complete the term and then be eligible to complete additional full three-year terms. The Trustees shall take their oath of office as prescribed by Illinois law."

Margaret Lurie seconded the motion. All members except Leora Siegel voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS

- A. Formation of Strategic Planning Committee Michael Tannen proposed Board members Shawn Iles, Sandra Smith and Leora Siegel serve on the Strategic Planning Committee. Karen Danczak Lyons will set the timetable and lead the process. Ben Schapiro moved to accept the committee membership as recommended by Mr. Tannen. Seconded by Vaishali Patel and approved on a voice vote.
- B. Closed Session Michael Tannen read the official language for convening a Closed Executive session for personnel matters. Motion by Ben Schapiro, second by Margaret Lurie, and approved by a unanimous roll call vote. The Board moved into Closed Session at 8:05 p.m.

Board members discussed the Library Director's employment agreement.

The Board re-convened into Open Session at 8:21 p.m.

Motion by Benjamin Schapiro, second by Sandra Smith – approve the Library Director's employment agreement (copy attached). Approved unanimously on a voice vote.

ADJOURNMENT – Benjamin Schapiro motioned to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Tori Foreman. The meeting adjourned at 8:25 pm.

Respectfully Submitted,

Margaret Lurie, Secretary

Next Meeting: Wednesday, April 20, 2016 at 6:30 pm Evanston Public Library, Board Room.

Library Director's Report March 16, 2016

Updates:

• We have added a new online service to support the reading interests of our residents. By signing up for **Select Reads**, patrons can receive notices about new books written by favorite authors and topics of interest. Also included are staff recommendations and staff newsletters highlighting important topics.

http://bookdb.nextgoodbook.com/signup/nl/510384b60d76af61ef7aff8942e361dd

On March 9th we welcomed almost 100 enthusiastic readers of all ages to The Big Read Keynote: Luis Alberto Urrea, author of Into the Beautiful North, presents: Universal Border--from Tijuana to the World. Best-selling author Luis Alberto Urrea shares his story of transformation from his beginnings in Tijuana to Pulitzer Prize finalist and beloved storyteller. Though recognized as a writer who concentrates on the border regions of the Southwestern United States,

Urrea says, "borders don't interest me. I'm really in the business of building bridges." Urrea invites us to think of the border as a place of convergence where meaningful conversations, and even love, between cultures begins. The author will be signing copies of the book immediately following the lecture.. The Big Read is a program of the National Endowment of the Arts in partnership with Arts Midwest.

An interview with Luis Alberto Urrea, a member of the Latino Literature Hall of Fame.

 In partnership with Jennifer Lasik, the Evanston Public Library is producing a series of programs for City staff as part of the ongoing Livability Academy. My thanks to our staff for sharing their expertise and talent with our colleagues. The events highlighted in lavender are also open to the public.





Approved April 20, 2016

Date	Time	Event Type	Location				
Wednesday, March 09, 2016	7:00 PM	Big Read Keynote Speaker	ETHS Auditorium				
		"Universal Border: From Tijuana to the World"	Park in lot on Dodge Ave.				
		Author: Luis Alberto Urrea	Enter through Door 7 (Auditorium)				
Saturday, March 12, 2016	2:00 PM	Latino Americans Documentary Screening and	Main Library, Community Room				
outur du () march 12) 2010	21001111	Discussion	1st Floor, 1703 Orrington				
Thursday, March 17, 2016	Noon	Lunch and Learn: Bring your Own Device	Main Library, Seminar Room				
		to stream library books, movies and more!	3rd Floor, 1703 Orrington				
Wednesday, March 23, 2016	Noon	Lunch and Learn: 3D Design & Printing	Main Library, Seminar Room				
,,			3rd Floor, 1703 Orrington				
Thursday, March 24, 2016	2:00 PM	Tour of Northwestern University Arts Circle	Northwestern University				
Saturday, March 26, 2016	2:00	EPL Literary Salon:	Main Library, Community Room				
		Ethics in Non-Fiction for Kids	1st Floor, 1703 Orrington				
Saturday, April 09, 2016	4:00	Author Reading: Christine Sneed and	Main Library, Community Room				
		Julia Sweeney	1st Floor, 1703 Orrington				
Monday, April 11, 2016	Noon	Summer 2016 Reads	Main Library, Community Room				
			1st Floor, 1703 Orrington				
Madnasday April 12 2016	1:00	Art. Commerce and Creative Entrepreneurs	Select businesses				
Wednesday, April 13, 2016	1.00	Art, Commerce and Creative Entrepreneurs	Select busillesses				
Thursday, April 14, 2016	14:00	Tour of Noyes	Noyes Cultural Center				
Wednesday, April 20, 2016	Noon	Book Reports for Adults	Main Library, Seminar Room				
Wednesday, April 27, 2016	2:00 PM	Tour of Northwestern University Arts Computer	NU				
	Z:UU PIVI	Tour of Northwestern University Arts Campus	NU				

- Through the tireless work of our Book Sale Volunteers, we raised \$14,764.10 at the March book sale. All proceeds from the sales are used to but new books and materials for the library. My sincere thanks to this amazing team of dedicated and hardworking volunteers!!
- Congratulations to Renee Neumeier for having her program proposal selected as part of a panel discussion at YA Services Symposium in Pittsburgh! Renee will present:

Avengers Assemble!: Establishing and Expanding Community Connections for School and Public Librarians

Superheroes work better in teams, and teen librarians and staff are no different. Whether you're a seasoned hero, are just coming into your powers, or are somewhere in between, this session will help you build partnerships and find avenues to create new ones in your community, regardless of budget or size. We'll help you identify, maintain, evaluate, and enrich new and existing partnerships to offer more seamless services to teens across your community. Busting down your library's walls can empowers

teens to discover how the library can connect to their lives in a multitude of ways, and develop their own superpowers.

Assessments, metrics and initiative results:

Foot traffic:	February, 2016	January, 2016
Main:	42,910	42,988
North:	4,029	3,734
CAMS:	3,730	3,472
Total:	50,669	50,194

Website visits in January: 39,997 February: 36,157

Overall Computer/Internet Use – all locations: January: 6,135 February: 5,800

NEW Metrics: I asked our partners National Able Network to begin sharing metrics that express their services at EPL. This is an important part of services to our adult patrons that had not been shared with us on a regular basis. My thanks to National Able Network, Andi Drilek, Lugenia Crusoe and their entire team for their important and wonderful work. [FYI: as included in the table below - TABE is the Test of Adult Basic Eduction test that consists of high school level math and English.]

	LPL Computer Lab and Oakton Community College Activities - Lebruary 2036																				
	1 Feb	a rok	3 Feb	4 Гер	s rab	a rok	e rab	JC Teb	ш Гер	16 Feb	17 Tek	18 Fek	15 Teo	22 Feb	23 Feb	24 Feb	25 Fek	26 Teb	20 Feb	Internary Total	Program Year fu funce Tatel
ORIENTATIONS																					
Evan don Public Library							A								14					12	1.12
Oaktan Community Callago		17								- 12 -										26	
TA DE TESTING	1	1					2		i				1			1		5		12	75
ONE-ON-DIVE RESUME ASSISTANCE	2	2	1.1	2	1	1	2		1.1		1	1	1.1	1.1						16	59
Workshops																					
Job Readiness Training																				0	24
JSWT (Gakton Community College)				8					6			2					6			27	
CRASH COURSES																					
Evanción Public Unitary							11	11												/1	137
Ostron Community College		12	1																	21	
RESOURCE ROOM (NEW CUSTOMERS)		0		1	4	3	2		1.1	2	0	12	0	1.1	1	0	0	0	3	25	12548
RESOURCE ROOM (REPEAT CUSTOMERS)	14	14	16	12	12	16	8	9	5	1	ы	11	9	12	э	8	5	4	10	201	2203
RESOURCE ROOM TOTAL	- 14	14	- D	13	15	19	10	ш		13	- 14 -	13	9	33	10	8	5	8	13	22	2463

Mon	Tues	Weds	Thurs	Fri			
1-Feb	2-Feb	3-Feb	4-Feb	5-Feb	TOTALS		
11	12	16	12	12	63		
8-Feb	9-Feb	10-Feb	11-Feb				
16	10	7	6		39		
	16-Feb	17-Feb	18-Feb	19-Feb			
	13	12	13	9	47		
22-Feb	23-Feb	24-Feb	25-Feb	26-Feb			
10	8	6	3	7	34		
29-Feb							
13					13		
		•			196		

Actual Computer Usage NEW AND REPEAT CUSTOMERS

Services and collaborations:

My thanks to Jill Skwerski for coordinating this program: The Evanston Public Library, in partnership with The Moran Center and the City of Evanston, will present an Expungement Clinic on Saturday, March 19, from 1-3 pm in the Evanston Public Library's Community Meeting Room. The Expungement Clinic is a free event to educate the public on the importance and process of clearing criminal records.

Although no records will be expunged or sealed at the Clinic, following the records relief presentation, Moran Center staff attorneys and volunteers will be available to meet with attendees individually to begin the record-clearing process. To learn more about the Clinic, visit <u>www.moran-center.org</u>.

• Monday, March 21, 6 PM, Community Meeting Room, Main Library

The Evanston Public Library and Northwestern University's Middle East and North African Studies (MENA) program present the seventh lecture in our joint series addressing the culture, politics, religion, and society of the Middle East and North Africa. This evening's event features NU Associate Chaplain and Director of Interfaith Engagement Tahera Ahmad discussing the issue of Islamophobia in America.

Highlights from Neighborhood Services from Connie Heneghan include:

First, I will give you my two favorites from February:

Book Babies at CAMS

These little ones met at Book Babies story time at CAMS. The mother's didn't know each other before story time, but they are fast friends now.



Washington School 16th Annual African American Heritage Reading Event (Feb. 3)

Along with many others including Karen Danczak Lyons, I had the privilege of reading at this annual event. I read to Ms. Starenko's 5th grade class. They were attentive, interesting and inquisitive. I thoroughly enjoyed myself. Ms. Starenko is the daughter of a former EPL librarian Marilyn Starenko.



Preschool Story time and Craft at CAMS (Feb. 1)



Science Saturdays at CAMS-Building Bridges (Feb. 6)



Gabriela Mansera was a last minute fill in for Florencia at Bilingual Story time (Feb. 3)



This family of four made great use of our family reading chair at North Branch. (Feb. 20)



Along with Karen Danczak Lyons, I attended the Foster Senior Group annual luncheon. They provided their own line dancers.

Highlights from Children's Services from Jan Bojda and the team include:

Programming Highlights

Jack and Jill group—pulled books on and created bibliography about topics relating to Black History Month. According to Kim Kaufmann, they loved the books and list.

Our attendance for Jammie Time was extremely small this past fall and winter, prompting us to ramp up promotions to see if we can get attendance back to earlier levels. Thanks to an extra promotional push we had 25 attendees in February.

Jessica Iverson presented her first Infant Rhymetime, filling in for Martha Meyer. She also filled in for Brian Wilson and presented her first Drop In Preschool Story time.

Martha Meyer and Jessica conducted another successful Chinese New Year event. Martha is especially proud (and tired, I bet) after serving total attendance of 817 at her programs this month!

Martha Meyer worked closely with Circulation Staff to interfile Juvenile paperback and hardback fiction collections. Brian weeded extensively to prep for the interfiling and future collection shifting.

Training and Continuing Ed

Altenbach, Balla, Bojda, Kennelly, Meyer attended SelectReads training. Balla attended 3 Spanish language classes. Balla attended Liveability Academy discussion on race at the YWCA. Kennelly attended Lincoln Story League Kennelly attended the Children's literary salon.

Wilson attended and volunteered at National-Louis University's Center of Teaching through Children's Book's Social Media session on Saturday, February 6. He helped moderate table discussions on various topics about social media, and also helped facilitate discussions between attendees and one of the presenters, Colby Sharp.

Bojda attended the LACONI YSS February Workshop on serving special populations. Speakers covered topics like empathy, the link between mental illness, substance abuse and homelessness. The Disability Players from JJ's List conducted an interactive workshop on working with people with a variety of disabilities, both as customers and potential employees or colleagues. One of the Players who is in charge of booking their presentations is an Evanston resident. Another of the players was a patron of the children's room when she was younger. They were tremendous. I know they were expensive, but they would be fabulous for a staff day program. The day finished with two speakers from the Northwest chapter of PFLAG. I have a staff member checking the bibliography of resources they provided against our holdings. I will share this with the appropriate selectors when this is complete.

Outreach and Community Engagement:

Group Visits:

Oakton First grade class visited on 2/22 for Tour, Story and Craft. (Altenbach, Wilson and Jude presenters)

Washington School Resource Fair: 30 interactions; 1 Library card made

Antolin set up and manned a table for parts of 2 evenings (2 ½ hours one day, 1 ½ hours the second) during Parent-Teacher conferences. I had the opportunity to speak to a lot of parents and provide Library literature as well as talk with other resource people.

Outreach/In-House Reach – Preschools information from Laura Antolin :

Day Care Delivery Book Bags: 14 - 10 Book Bags delivered to home providers; **4** Book Bags delivered to IWSE (Baby Toddler Nursery and Teen Baby Nursery); **1** additional home for March delivery

I Sally Schwarzlose delivered to 5 home providers this month (1 new home)

Issan accompanied me on my delivery to 5 home providers in order to meet the providers and will deliver on her own in March. We also discussed the possibility of her going into 2 homes to offer story times.

LEAP: We will start Post Office LEAP in March. We haven't done this unit in several years at the preschool and I am re-thinking the curriculum design to allow it to run more smoothly in the classroom.

Teen Baby Nursery story time: 20 (16 children and 4 staff); infants and toddlers Baby Toddler Nursery story time: 86 (68 children and 18 staff); infants, toddlers, preschool classrooms

Learning & Growing story time at JEH: 21 (11 children and 10 adults: 8 families)
We had a valentine day celebration; read books, sang songs and make foam craft valentines.
Creative Play Preschool story time at Robert Crown: 29 (24 children, 5 staff); toddler and preschool classrooms

Child Care Center of Evanston story time: 66 (56 children, 10 staff); 5 classrooms Lunch Bunch at JEH – Laundry LEAP: 15 (9 children, 5 adults, 1 staff: 5 families)

I brought Laundry LEAP materials and we had a play literacy unit with parents.

Issie Block had emailed me that one of the Head Start teachers had asked to borrow a Laundry unit for her classroom so I brought that over after Lunch Bunch. Since we're not playing Laundry this year, I'm happy that the teacher wanted to use the materials.

Winter Words Prize book delivery: 9 home providers (65 children – waiting for info from 2) I delivered green EPL bags with 2 picture books, 3 board books, a button matching activity and a Professional Development certificate to each provider.

2 home providers still to be delivered to as well as the 2 classrooms at Teen Baby Nursery)

EC2C Community Literacy Design Team meetings:

² Our team has continued to work on creating text messages to present to the parents at our Parent Advisory meeting in March. We'll be pushing these out through the COE's gov/delivery system.

² We're also working on promoting the app *Vroom* and will present the app along with the text messages and see what resonates with our parent group.

¹ We met with Dr. Aimee Crow from Erie Health to talk about *Reach Out and Read* as well as providing materials about *Vroom* to Erie.

I met with our 3 NU Capstone students to monitor their research and will meet again in early March.

Summer Reading – McGaw YMCA:

I met with Kaleena Escalier from the McGaw YMCA and we hammered out a plan to include EPL's SRP in the Y's Summer Learning Programs - YReaders locations as well as the Power Scholar's Academy program that they will be offering at Walker School. These are all children who are recommended for these programs based on data collected at school and that we would like to reach and I'm thrilled about this partnership. The Y is data-sharing with D65 and Kaleena was receptive to sharing that data with the Library.

Additionally, we'll offer SRP sign-up to Camp WaNaGo families. I am currently working out a few visits to the Library in the summer for these groups.

I Kaleena invited me to come to their Teach Training in May to talk about SRP and resource sharing.

Summer Reading – Crown:

Donna Kent and Amber Woodson and I met to talk about again embedding 20 minutes of reading into the camp schedule this summer. They were both very receptive and we're working out details for signing campers up for the SRP individually and making sure that parents are aware of their children's participation.

Sutton Library at Family Focus:

I worked on weeding and organizing the children's collection and feel like it's getting into shape. I still need to scan the books so that we can create a list of the holdings and label the books.

Head Start/Early Head Start Professional Development Workshop:

I was asked to be a presenter at the first D65 Head Start/Early Head Start all day PD workshop on March 4. I will be presenting information on literacy under the larger workshop's theme *The Dance of Diversity*.

D65 also asked that the Library "donate" a book for each classroom. I was notified that I would receive a speaker's stipend of \$200 and I asked that this money be used to purchase books for the classrooms. I sent suggestions of titles that spoke to diversity.

PTA Council Navigating Diversity at ETHS:

I brought books to augment this session and represent the Library and participated in the activity in the classroom.

From Renee Neumeier: Teen Services Highlights include:

Programming:

Outside the Lines Book Club:

In February teen services staff member, Kayla Freeman, hosted our first meeting of Outside the Lines, which focused on the graphic novel *Tomboy* by Liz Prince Kayla came into the discussion with many materials ready to go: two current event articles about gender identity in American high schools, a drawing worksheet, and a long list of discussion questions. In reality, we used almost none of these things. The kids were eager to talk about the themes of belonging, identity, bullying and gender expression. Kayla guided them somewhat using the content from the book, but mostly, the just had a lot of opinions on the subject and her role was to facilitate the space. She tried to balance the speaking time each person used, and invited the more quiet participants to contribute more. Kayla also solicited feedback from the students to discover what they would like to see from this club and which titles they may be interested in exploring in the future. Each student left the club meeting with a copy of next month's book, plus a second copy for a friend whom they've pledged to bring along to the meeting on March 9.

School Engagement:

Roycemore Teacher In service Day:

Renee Neumeier was asked to present on EPL's digital resources and also talk about how teachers can bring their students over to EPL to work on projects, do research or just for study space. Teacher checkout and Teacher STEAM kits were also highlighted.

Arwyn School (Wilmette, IL):

For the first time we were contacted by Arwyn School in Wilmette about bring a small group of students to visit EPL. Students came to access our databases and research materials. Ashley Hamernik gave them a tour of the space and a tour of the second floor, explaining where the non-fiction materials were and why those were more helpful to them on a research level. She also gave a brief presentation on research databases available at EPL.

Beacon Academy:

Beacon Academy brought over three different groups of students for visits to EPL to research, hang out and select independent reading books. We're working with Beacon to possibly develop a consistent schedule for students to come use the Loft or study rooms.

Nichols Maker Club:

Ashley Hamernik has been an EPL liaison to the Nichols Maker Club which meets in the Nichols Library on Mondays. In 2015 both Ashley and Renee helped the 8th graders plan a new Maker Space for these Maker activities to take place in. Now all three grades come by on Mondays to use the space and do different projects. It's been a cool process because Nichols has been inspired by some of the projects we do at EPL and vice versa. For examples for one of the first sessions the librarians and media art teacher at Nichols who oversee the club gave the student a LEGO challenge where they had to design a vehicle to travel the farthest distance down a ramp. The kids loved it and involved only few supplies. Last week they did melted crayon art with the students, which was inspired by the success of EPL's Melted Crayon Art Teen DIY Programs. It's been a great partnership for both groups so far.

STEAM Kits for Teachers:

We launched our STEAM Kits for Teacher Programs this month and so far there has been an interest in all of the kits. Renee Neumeier sent out emails to all the middle school, magnet school and private school librarians, special education teachers, math teachers, science teachers and media arts teachers letting them know about the service and the benefits. She also included a survey to get feedback about other kits they might be interested in and professional development they might be interested in related to the kits.

Motorola SolutionS Grant

Renee Neumeier and Kirby Callam from D65 co-wrote the grant together. It includes making the STEAM Kits available to non- profits that also serve youth in Evanston like Y.O.U. and Family Focus, developing more comprehensive curriculum that aligns with the Next Generation Science Standards and STEM pathways/progressions and there's a large professional development piece. In order to use the kits educators in schools or out of schools would need to complete a few professional development sessions, some would just be introductory to how access the kits and others would focus on inquiry based learning, the engineering design process and how to use the kits in your curriculum effectively. And of course it would also fund the purchase more STEAM Kits to accommodate the expansion of the program. The grant request is for \$50,000.

Community Engagement:

Big Read/Community Wide Read:

For the Big Read this month has been spent coordinating and preparing everything for the author keynote event in March. A publicity plan was put together and has been sent out and share throughout Evanston. We've also been in communication with ETHS to discuss how everything will work day of. The Teen Advisory Board cut apart all the fabric strips for the looms that will be at the main library and out in the community. The middle school are committed to displaying their pieces at EPL the month of May. We'll have a student art gallery night the first Friday to kick off their display.

For the next community wide read we finished up the grant proposal asking for support from the Evanston Community Foundation. FAN is handling scheduling a date and nailing down a price for Wes Moore.

Summer Reading:

Jill Schacter and Renee Neumeier met with the graphic designer to discuss what EPL was looking for summer reading promotion materials. After talking to the designer we thought a booklet or a magazine highlighting summer reading and all of our summer programming would work best and might be a more effective piece instead a variety of flyers. Jill and Renee then worked with EPL staff to gather information for as many programs as possible so that it could be included in the booklet.

Teen Services staff put together all of their programs for the summer in February and there will also be some new programs like Tinker Teens and Friday Flicks that we'll be trying for the first time.

Professional Development Feedback from Ashley Hamernik:

Serving at Risk Teens Workshop @ Downer's Grove: Renee and I traveled to Downer's Grove to attend a workshop concerning at Risk Youth. The topics ended up being different than I thought but were still relevant to serving youth in a meaningful way. One topic discussed was serving free meals in the library during the summer and all the implications and challenges involved with that. It was an interesting topic and I liked the idea, though I could see several challenges with this in our library—most notably our location and available space. It would be nice to offer some sort of snack to our teens during the afternoon hour, especially to those that have been at the library for a good chuck on the day.

Another topic of discussion was how to effectively communicate with people who have mental problems such as schizophrenia or bipolar disorder. The speaker talked about how to talk with them in ways that would allow peaceful resolutions in stressful situations and ways to build trust. It was a great talk that I found helpful.

Community Outreach Highlights from Jill Skwerski include:

Here are just a few February highlights from Community Engagement.

The Big Read – I held two *Into the Beautiful North* book discussions out in the community, one at the Mather, the other at Ridgeville Park. Both discussions were intimate, yet engaging with the overall response to the book being positive. One attendee enjoyed the book so much that she mailed her copy (provided by EPL) to her sister who lives out of state! Several participants commented on the timeliness of the immigration theme running through ITBN related not only to Mexican immigrants but to current events in Europe as well.

Community Partners for Affordable Housing – A partnership that took root with CPAH expanded offsite to a presentation at Fleetwood-Jourdain where information was received enthusiastically, albeit by few attendees. This was our third presentation with CPAH, the next will be held at EPL in May.

We continue to look for ways to connect and support our homeless population with services across the community. We held our second gathering of community partners to discuss these topics, exploring ways that we can work together to make improvements. While no easy solutions are at hand related to access to showers or shelters, the forthcoming universal intake database may slightly expedite the process for some. This database is anticipated to be up and running perhaps later this summer.

Forthcoming events – Expungement Clinic, 3/19 Special Needs Program: Dyslexia, 4/14

Vietnam Vets Commemoration, 4/16

Adult Services highlights include:

On February 25th staff from the Library, the City of Evanston and local community based
organizations met to continue the ongoing discussion on Evanston homelessness resources. My
thanks to Lesley Williams, Jill Skwerski and our staff for continuing to look for ways to provide
referrals for services as programs and options are reduced due to the ongoing budget stalemate in
Springfield.

Upcoming events of note:

EPL Literary Salon: Ethics in Nonfiction for Kids

Do we hold our nonfiction for children to different standards than we do our informational texts for adults? When you're trying to make something fun for kids to read, where do you draw the line between fact and fancy? Join four of the most experienced nonfiction authors for children, Candace Fleming (THE FAMILY ROMANOV), Judith Fradin (THE PRICE OF FREEDOM), Barb Rosenstock (THE NOISY PAINTBOX), and Sally M. Walker (WINNIE) in a discussion of the increasingly complex and exciting world of nonfiction for children.

Author Talk: Jessica Abel

Bestselling graphic novelist and Evanston native Jessica Abel will give a talk drawn from her 2015 book, Out on the Wire: the Storytelling Secrets of the New Masters of Radio. Come learn how to think through an idea, how to workshop it into a story concept that will be worth the paper (or pixels) it's written on, and to identify the elements of powerful stories that connect. The Los Angeles Times called Out on the Wire, "a boundary-pushing comic, a love letter from one blossoming new media to another... a terrific book for radio superfans and would-be producers, a niche audience that isn't so niche anymore."

CAMS Book Group: Being Mortal & Can't We Talk About Something More Pleasant

End of life is not an easy topic. Who should decide how and when we die? Surgeon Gawande discusses the limitations of modern medicine. Award winning illustrator Roz Chast recounts the difficulty of caring for her aging parents. Copies of Being Mortal and Can't We Talk About Something More Pleasant are available at the Chicago Avenue & Main Street Branch. Stop in or call, (847) 905-0764, to reserve a copy.

"Summer 2016 adult book preview and give-aways" with Betsy Bird

If it's never too early to start thinking about summer, then
it's never too early to think about what you might like to
read on the beach. Join Evanston Public Library's2016
12:00 PM - 1:30
PMCollection Development Manager Betsy Bird as she talks
up the hottest books of the summer season and hands out
some pre-publication copies of those very titles. You won't
Meeting Room
(First Floor)2016

Saturday, March 26, 2016 2:00 PM - 3:30 PM Main Library - Community Meeting Room (First Floor)

Saturday, March 26, 2016 4:00 PM - 6:00 PM Main Library - Community Meeting Room (First Floor)

Monday, April 11, 2016 Ac.oo DM, 4.00 Monday, March 28, 2016 7:00 PM - 8:00 PM Chicago Ave./Main St. 50 Year Commemoration - Vietnam War Vets Recognition

community recognition event.

Saturday, April 16, 2016

1:00 PM - 2:00 PM

Main Library - Community Meeting Room (First Floor)

Excerpts from Patron feedback:

From Jan Bojda:

Lesley put Dedra in touch with us as she was looking for a place for a Black History Month program for kids. Brian pulled for the display and put together a short bibliography. Kaufamann, Iverson and Mathews were the staff on duty the day of the event.

From Dedra Flournoy of Jack and Jill Northwest:

...the ladies at the desk made sure we had everything we needed and the books pulled by your team made a wonderful display. I could not have been more pleased and the event was quite successful. We had a handful of children who participated and as I had a few calendars left, I handed them out to some of your patrons. I also left one for you, along with our activity worksheet so that you could see the work we had for the children.

Thanks again to you and the library team. I am so grateful for all of your assistance and the effort behind the bibliography, book display and overall hospitality. What a wonderful testament to the work you do on behalf of the community!

Dedra Flournoy

From Laura Antolin: Re: Winter Words and home providers

Thank you for such a wonderful reading program and the incentive to read to children every day.

Thanks,

Mrs. Marsha and The Little Lambs

Thank you for including us!

Travon Bonner and Shining Stars Childcare, Inc.

Re; Washington School Resource Fair:

Also, the parent I made a Library card for at the Washington School Resource Fair was beyond happy – she had moved to Evanston recently and said having access to library books was the most important thing to her. She was really happy EPL was at this event.

From Jessica Iverson:

The Chinese New Year celebration was a success! Easily over 100 people attended. I had prepared a song (along with a power point and lyric sheets) that was recommended to me by Brooklyn (one of the Chinese moms) and it was a hit with everyone. Many of the adults knew it and confidently sang along. I have enjoyed preparing for this portion of our Chinese programs. And I have been pleasantly surprised by how many Chinese patrons have come up to me days, weeks and even months after, telling me how much they appreciated hearing and being reminded of the songs. And some families have gone on to sing them with their children at home too. There are so many beautiful Chinese songs out there! I'm happy to be part of reminding folks of them! Martha also (similar to other Chinese events) told the folk story connected with the holiday, and organized and worked with volunteers to prep materials for crafts. Overall, the afternoon was great for all!

From Martha Meyer: Thanks from Park School 2: Hi Martha, I would love to set up a time to come for March. Our there any dates that work for you?...Thanks so much! We have been really enjoying our visits!

Christy

Feedback on the *story time leadership* I provide, from the surveys:

Y&R; One thing you enjoyed:

- "Leader is very good"
- "Martha. She is always so energetic and enthusiastic. No. 1"
- "The instructors. They are pretty engaged."

One Thing you would change:

• "Nothing; you all do a great job."

Book Babies; One Thing You enjoyed:

"Martha the librarian & the atmosphere she creates. So brilliant!"

"Miss Martha!"

"The whole program is well organized."

Infant Rhymetime: *One thing you enjoyed:*

"laid back, upbeat, nice families, and great facilitator!"

Here is the team that pulled together the Chinese New Year Celebration: Olivia Mo, Wendy Cao, Jessica Iverson, Martha Meyer, Brooklyn Guan, Audrey Guo, and Diane T:



Volunteers acting out the story of Monkey King while Audrey Guo and I narrated:



Ms. Martha leading the Monkey-themed Lion Dance:



From Laura Antolin:

Home provider quotes re: Winter Words:

Thank you for such a wonderful reading program and the incentive to read to children every day.

Thanks,

Mrs. Marsha and The Little Lambs

Thank you for including us!

Travon Bonner and Shining Stars Childcare, Inc.

Also, the parent I made a Library card for at the Washington School Resource Fair was beyond happy – she had moved to Evanston recently and said having access to library books was the most important thing to her. She was really happy EPL was at this event.